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Module One: Getting Started 

Welcome to the Proposal Writing workshop! 

A good proposal doesn’t just outline what product or service you 

would like to create or deliver. It does so in such a way that the 

reader feels it is the only logical choice. 

This course will take participants through each step of the 

proposal writing process, from understanding why they are writing 

a proposal; to gathering information; to writing and proofreading; 

to creating the final, professional product. 

 

Workshop Objectives 

Research has consistently demonstrated that when clear goals are associated 

with learning, it occurs more easily and rapidly.  

By the end of this workshop, participants will be able to: 

• Identify the purpose of a proposal 

• Identify different types of proposals 

• Identify and perform the steps in the proposal writing process 

• Perform a needs analysis and write a goal statement 

• Prepare a proposal outline 

• Improve their writing skills with a variety of techniques 

• Use appropriate resources and ghosting to build a strong case 

• Add illustrations to their proposal 

• Proofread and edit their proposal 

• Add the finishing touches to create a professional-looking final product 

 

All the world is a laboratory to the 

inquiring mind.   

Martin H. Fischer 
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Pre-Assignment Review 

The purpose of the Pre-Assignment is to get you thinking about the proposal 

writing strategies that they are already using and where you need to improve.  

Bring in a proposal that you have been assigned, whether it is just an idea, an 

excerpt, or a complete proposal. Take a moment to ensure that all participants 

have completed the assignment, and that they have not violated their company’s 

confidentiality in doing so.  
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Module Two: Understanding Proposals 

Proposals are a very unique type of business document. In this 

module, we will explore the proposal writing process, as well as the 

most common types of proposals. Note that we only provide an 

overview of the four major types; there are many variations on 

these types, as well as more specialized categories. 

 

 

 

 

What is a Proposal? 

A proposal is primarily a sales pitch for a product or service that your company 

offers. It outlines a problem or opportunity that the client has and presents a 

product or service as a solution. 

Proposals can be directed externally (to another organization) or internally (for 

example, to senior management, in order to gain support for a project or idea). In 

this course, we will focus on external proposals, but the principles can also be applied to internal 

proposals. 

Proposals can also be solicited or unsolicited. Solicited proposals are written in response to a Request 

for Proposal (RFP) or Invitation for Proposal (IFP). Unsolicited proposals are those that the organization 

sends on its own in an attempt to gain new business. 

 

  

I don't pretend we have all the 

answers. But the questions are 

certainly worth thinking about. 

Arthur C. Clarke 
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The Proposal Writing Process 

The proposal writing process has seven major steps. 

 

 

 

As we have indicated above, the writing and editing process is often repeated several times. We will 

work through the entire process during this course.  

 

Types of Proposals  

There are four main categories of proposals. Note that these categories can and do 

overlap – proposals are unique to each situation and each organization. 

A Technical Proposal is a specific kind of proposal that defines the technical 

requirements for a project. It also details the approach and complete plan (including 

time, cost, and resources) for the project. This proposal is excellent at showing 

companies how you can easily solve technological problems in their organization, without the need for 

them to find and hire skilled staff. Although these types of proposals are often read and approved by a 

technical team, it is important to include an executive summary, introduction, and conclusion that are 

written for the layman. 

Perform needs 
analysis

Create the 
goal 

statement

Create the 
outline

Do your 
research

Write the first 
draft

Edit and 
proofread

Polish the 
document
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As you might imagine, Sales Proposals are usually written to convince a new client to purchase a 

product or service. This is done by building a case for why the client needs that particular product or 

service, and why you are the best person for the job. These are the types of proposals that we will focus 

on in this workshop. Because this type of proposal is essentially a sales pitch, clarity and conciseness are 

absolutely crucial. Make sure that this proposal focuses on what the solution can do for the customer, 

rather than the nuts and bolts of the proposed project. 

A Cost Proposal is an outline of estimated costs. It is usually prepared by a contractor to prepare for 

project negotiations. 

The following items are essential in a cost proposal: 

• Solid estimates with backup data 

• Detailed breakdown of all foreseeable costs, including material, resources, labor, equipment, 

travel, administrative expenses, etc. 

• Summary of high-level costs for executives 

• Professionally prepared disclaimer validating that these are best estimates only 

A Professional Service proposal is a type of sales proposal that focuses on a professional service 

offering, such as public relations, marketing, or health care. Because of the focus on service, the 

following elements are usually included: 

• List of the people who will be providing the service and their credentials 

• Organization’s record of service 

• Testimonials and references 

• Resources available in the organization 

You may also see some elements of the cost proposal, such as a breakdown of labor costs. 
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About Requests for Proposals 

Earlier, we mentioned that the proposal process can be initiated by a Request for 

Proposals (or RFP). This is a document issued by a company requesting proposals for 

a particular project. The RFP can be as simple or as detailed as a company likes – it 

all depends on what they require. 

Information commonly requested via an RFP can include: 

• Organizational background 

• Organization’s experience with the requested product or service 

• Solution details 

• Project timeline and budget 

• Customer reference 

If you are responding to an RFP always double and triple check that you have included all the 

information requested. If the RFP details a particular person to submit the proposal to, and a date to 

submit it by, follow their instructions.  

Any RFP requests (such as those pertaining to style, language, format, and/or template) should 

supersede any company or best-practice policies. If you are not sure which set of rules should take 

precedence, consult with your manager. 

 

Module Two: Case Study 

Kevin sat in a meeting with his co-worker, Carol. The sales of their product had hit a lull in the last few 

months, and they were discussing ways to increase sales. Carol said, “We could offer incentives to our 

existing customers. That’s also a great way to make the customer feel valued.” 

Kevin said, “That’s an idea to try. I was thinking that while we do that, we could also send out a sales 

proposal to Ritcher International to inform them about our new product line.” 

Carol said, “Have they asked us to put together a proposal?” 

“No,” Kevin said. “But we could send out an unsolicited proposal, that will focus on what we can do for 

them, the customer.” 

Kevin and Carol’s team started work on the proposal, and they were rewarded with the company’s time, 

attention, and interest. 

  

http://www.atlanticspeakersbureau.com/
http://www.humanskillsdevelopment.ca/


Page 11   Atlantic Speakers Bureau and Human Skills Development  

Module Two: Review Questions 

1. What is the definition of a proposal? 

a) An individual or collaborative enterprise that is carefully planned and designed to achieve a 

particular aim. 

b) An article or substance that is manufactured or refined for sale. 

c) A line of talk that attempts to persuade someone or something. 

d) A sales pitch for a product or service that your company offers.  

2. Where can proposals be directed? 

a) Internally 

b) Externally 

c) To senior management 

d) All of the above 

3. Which of these is an example of a solicited proposal? 

a) Commercial item. 

b) Technical correspondence. 

c) Invitation for Proposal.  

d) Unrequested proposal. 

4. In proposal writing, which two processes are often repeated several times? 

a) Editing and writing.  

b) Researching and editing. 

c) Outlining and researching. 

d) Researching and writing. 

5. Which of these statements is not true of a technical proposal? 

a) It details the approach and complete plan (including time, cost, and resources) for the 

project.  

b) Because these types of proposals are often read and approved by a technical team, it is 

important to exclude an executive summary.  

c) It is a specific kind of proposal that defines the technical requirements for a project.  

d) This proposal is excellent at showing companies how you can easily solve technological 

problems in their organization, without the need for them to find and hire skilled staff. 
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6. Which proposal can be defined as “ a type of sales proposal that focuses on a professional 

service offering, such as public relations, marketing, or health care”? 

a) Cost proposal. 

b) Technical proposal. 

c) Professional service proposal. 

d) Sales proposal. 

7. Which of these items is essential to a cost proposal? 

a) Professionally prepared disclaimer validating that these are best estimates only.  

b) Organization’s record of service. 

c) Testimonials and references. 

d) List of the people who will be providing the service and their credentials. 

8. What does RFP stand for? 

a) Reminder of Projects. 

b) Request for Projects. 

c) Reminder of Proposals. 

d) Request for Proposals.  

9. Which of these pieces of information are common requested via an RFP? 

a) Resources available in the organization. 

b) Project timeline and budget.  

c) Solid estimates with backup data. 

d) Detailed breakdown of all foreseeable costs. 

10. What should any request for RFPs supersede? 

a) A cost proposal. 

b) A statement of work. 

c) Any company or best-practice policies.  

d) The duties of any job description. 
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Module Three: Beginning the Proposal Writing Process 

To write a convincing proposal, you must get started on the right 

foot. This module will look at how to determine the purpose of the 

proposal and gather background information.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Identifying Your Purpose and Your Audience 

Your proposal should have a single goal in mind. What exactly will the proposal do? 

Some examples: 

• Convince a customer to buy the WidgetMaster 3000 

• Convince a customer to hire you to demolish a building 

• Outline the meal planning services that your company provides 

Then, identify who the audience will be. Some continued examples from above: 

• Bill Smith of Smith Construction Inc. 

• The business team at Acme Hotels Ltd. 

• The nutrition team and the business team at a local nursing home 

Note: When you write your outline later on, you may want to make a note of sections that may have a 

different audience, such as the executive summary. 

 

  

A writer doesn't solve problems. He 

allows them to emerge. 

Friedrich Dürrenmatt 
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Performing a Needs Analysis 

A good needs analysis must answer four questions: 

• Who are the customers of the proposal? 

• What do they want or need? 

• What do they currently have as a solution? 

• What can we offer? 

To start, you should answer the first question. You may want to seek results from stakeholders or other 

interested parties. (For example, if your senior management team has identified a sales opportunity, 

they may have some thoughts about possible customers.) Keep an eye out for additional customer 

opportunities during the needs analysis process. 

Next, it is time to gather information about the customers. Stakeholders may be a possible source, as 

are market research studies, company reports, and organizational biographies. At times, you may be in 

contact with the customer themselves. Make use of open questions to gather as much information as 

possible. 

During the proposal, keep an eye out for new or changing answers to your needs analysis, and adjust 

your proposal approach as necessary. 
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Writing the Goal Statement 

Once the needs analysis is complete, it’s time to write the goal statement. This 

will help you understand what you want to achieve. 

First, identify the type of proposal. Throughout this course, we will be focusing 

on a generic proposal. However, having a more defined type in mind will help 

you create a more successful proposal. You may choose a type discussed in the 

previous module (technical, sales, cost, or professional service), or it may be of a different type 

altogether (such as a non-profit grant proposal).  

Next, add in the purpose of your proposal. Finally, bring it all together into the goal statement. This 

statement typically takes the form: Our <type of proposal> will convince the reader to <desired end 

result>. 

Example 

Our technical proposal will convince the customer to upgrade to Snazzy Web Services 2.5. 

 

Module Three: Case Study 

Sharon called up her customer, Michelle, to discuss the specifics of the solicited sales proposal. Sharon 

asked, “Michelle, what’s your main reason for shopping around for another program?” 

Michelle said, “We were working with Computech, but we experienced too many glitches and crashes 

with their program.” 

Sharon said, “In past years, we had the same problem with our database. Our experts quickly solved 

those problems, and currently, our clients report very few issues. The issues they do report are quickly 

fixed.” Sharon asked, “What can we offer your company at this time?” 

She kept using open questions with the customer and received the information she needed. Sharon then 

used the information to present a dynamite sales proposal to Michelle’s company.  
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Module Three: Review Questions 

1. Which of these is the single goal your proposal should keep in mind? 

a) Where exactly will the proposal take place? 

b) What exactly will the proposal do?  

c) Who will work on this proposal? 

d) What is the cost of this proposal? 

2. Which of these is not an example of a proposal? 

a) Outline the meal planning services that your company provides. 

b) Convince a customer to hire you to demolish a building. 

c) Meet with the business team at Acme Hotels Ltd.  

d) Convince a customer to buy the WidgetMaster 3000 

3. Which of these is an example of who your audience could be for your proposal? 

a) The WidgetMaster 3000. 

b) The EasySell Database 5.0 

c) A building on the corner of Main St. and Wallace Ln. 

d) The nutrition team and business team at a local nursing home.  

4. What is a question that a good needs analysis answers? 

a) Who will complete the proposal? 

b) When will the proposal be complete? 

c) Who do the customers currently have as a solution?  

d) What exactly will the proposal do? 

5. What should you keep an eye out for during the needs analysis process? 

a) Additional customer opportunities.  

b) The timeline of the proposal. 

c) Who would be the best project manager? 

d) Who else could complete the proposal? 

6. Who could be a possible source for gathering information about customers? 

a) Stakeholders 

b) Market research studies 

c) Company reports 

d) All of the above 

http://www.atlanticspeakersbureau.com/
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7. What type of questions should you use when gathering information from the customers 

themselves? 

a) Closed questions 

b) Personal questions 

c) Open questions 

d) Don’t ask questions. Let the customer do the talking 

8. Once the needs analysis is complete, what needs to be written next? 

a) The goal statement 

b) Communication plan 

c) Risk management plan 

d) The customer survey 

9. When writing a goal statement, what needs to be identified first? 

a) The team members 

b) The strategy 

c) The cost 

d) The type of proposal 

10. Which of these is a good example of a goal statement? 

a) Our goal is to meet with the business team at 5 p.m. on Thursday. 

b) Our technical proposal will convince the customer to upgrade to Snazzy Web Services 2.5.  

c) Your team’s production will increase by 10% when they use the Easy Sell 5.1 upgrade. 

d) The cost of our product is worth the investment. 
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Module Four: Preparing An Outline 

Now that we have our background information, it’s time to start 

creating the framework for the proposal. The preparation process 

that we outline in this module may seem detailed and comprehensive 

– and it is. Why? The more detailed and accurate your outline is the 

more cohesive and persuasive your proposal will be.  

With that being said, the outline should not be set in stone. It must 

evolve as the proposal is being built. 

 

 

A General Format 

Proposals vary widely in their size and structure. However, most proposals include 

the following elements, listed in the order that they typically appear in the proposal: 

• Cover Letter: Like a resume cover letter, this document outlines what your 

company is, the basic thrust of the proposal, and any conditions (such as a 

date of expiry). It should be signed by your senior officers. 

• Title Page: Every proposal should have a title. The title page should include the title, the client’s 

name, and address, the name of the person receiving the proposal, your company’s name, and 

address, and the date the proposal will be submitted. If you are responding to a request for 

proposal, the first line of the title page should say, “Response to Requirements,” and the 

proposal number should be listed below the title. 

• Proprietary Notice: It is always a good idea to outline how the information in the proposal can 

and cannot be used, shared, and transmitted. Get your legal team’s help with this section. 

• Table of Contents: A list of all the major sections and sub-sections in your proposal. You can use 

Arabic or Roman numerals; just be consistent. (Tip: Most word processors can generate this for 

you automatically.) 

• Executive Summary: This is the most important selling tool in your proposal. It should be aimed 

at the executives in the client’s organization (hence its name). It should outline the proposed 

solution, why the solution was chosen, project management details, how the product will be 

I try to leave out the parts that 

people skip. 

Elmore Leonard 

http://www.atlanticspeakersbureau.com/
http://www.humanskillsdevelopment.ca/


Page 19   Atlantic Speakers Bureau and Human Skills Development  

handed off to the organization (if appropriate), major benefits that will be realized, high-level 

cost and time estimates, and why your organization is the best candidate for the task.  

• Introduction: An explanation of why you are writing the proposal, and an overview of what to 

expect. 

• Body: The meat of the proposal, organized by headings (your major points) and sub-headings 

(sub-points). 

• Summary and Conclusions: Summarize the main points covered, the proposed solution, and 

why your organization is the best candidate for the task. 

• Bibliography: List of resources used in the proposal. 

Note: The level of headings that you use will depend on the complexity of the report. Our suggestion: 

use a minimum of two and a maximum of five. 

 

Special Sections 

In addition to the standard components mentioned in the previous topic, here are 

some optional components that you might see in a proposal: 

• Table of Figures (if there are a lot of illustrations in the proposal) 

• Statement of understanding 

• Organizational history 

• Summary of writer’s credentials 

• Proposed project timeline 

• Cost-benefit analysis 

• Benefits summary 

• Scientific method 

• Budget 

• Specific project elements, such as proposed product design, marketing plan, schedule, etc. 

• Problem analysis 

• Glossary of jargon, technical terms, etc. 

Can you think of other things to add to this list? 
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Creating a Framework  

Once the standard components and any special sections are outlined, it is time to 

build the body of your proposal. To start, outline the major points that your 

proposal will contain. 

Example 

1. Cover letter 

2. Title page 

3. Proprietary Notice 

4. Table of Contents 

5. Executive Summary 

6. Introduction 

7. History of Helicopters in North America 

8. Local History of Helicopters 

9. Helicopters Today  

10. An Overview of the Jetking H176 

11. Summary and conclusions 

12. Bibliography 

Remember, this is just a guideline – you can move sections around and add additional points as you 

perform your research and write the proposal. 
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Getting Down to Details 

Once you have your main points outlined, add the supporting or sub-points beneath 

each heading. As we mentioned earlier, we recommend at least two sub-points (and 

a maximum of nine) per heading. If you can’t find two sub-points, you may want to 

combine that major heading with another one. 

In this example, we have added a few additional sub-points to points 8 and 9. 

Example 

1. Cover Letter 

2. Title Page 

3. Proprietary Notice 

4. Table of Contents 

5. Executive Summary 

6. Introduction 

7. History of Helicopters  

8. Helicopters Today  

8.1. Search and Rescue Functions 

8.2. Military Operations 

8.3. Training Functions 

9. An Overview of the Jetking H176 

9.1. Search and Rescue Functions 

9.2. Military Operations 

9.3. Training Functions 

10. Summary and Conclusions 

11. Bibliography 
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Module Four: Case Study 

Steven sat across from his co-worker, Sarah, in her office. After Steven finished the first draft of his 

outline for her technical proposal, he needed someone he trusted to proofread it.  

Sarah said, “Your cover letter and title page looked great. I couldn’t have written the executive summary 

better myself. There were a few questions I had about the body of the work, but they are mostly self-

explanatory. …” She pointed out one particular note. “It seemed like you tried to write the Proprietary 

Notice yourself, right?” 

Steven nodded. “I did. It was difficult to put together.” 

Sarah said, “I noticed. You’ll want to get our legal team to help you with that.” 

Steven said, “Thanks for your feedback, Sarah. I definitely needed it.” 

Steven sought out the legal team’s help, and he presented a clean, crisp, proofread outline afterwards. 
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Module Four: Review Questions 

1. Which of these statements are true about preparing an outline? 

a) Once you have the background information, it’s time to start creating the framework for the 

proposal.  

b) The preparation process may seem detailed and comprehensive, but it’s actually not.  

c) The more detailed and accurate your outline is the more cohesive and persuasive your 

proposal will be.  

d) The outline should not be set in stone; it must evolve as the proposal is being built. 

2. Which of these is not an element that you would find in a proposal? 

a) Conflict analysis 

b) Proprietary Notice 

c) Summary and conclusions 

d) Bibliography 

3. Which part of the general format of the proposal outlines what your company is, the basic 

thrust of the proposal, and any conditions? 

a) The body 

b) The cover letter 

c) The table of contents 

d) The title page 

4. If you are responding a request for proposal, what should the first line of the title page say? 

a) Response to Requirements.  

b) Reaction to Requirements. 

c) Request for Unsolicited Proposal. 

d) Reaction to Proposal. 

5. Which section of the general format requires help from your legal team? 

a) Table of Contents 

b) Bibliography 

c) Introduction 

d) Proprietary Notice 
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6. Which of these should be outlined in the executive summary? 

a) Concerns with the use of the product. 

b) Names and duties of the project management team. 

c) High-level cost and time estimates.  

d) All of the above. 

7. What will the level of headings used in the general format depend on? 

a) The number of products 

b) The complexity of the report 

c) The timeline 

d) The costs 

8. Which of these is an additional component you might see in a proposal? 

a) Problem analysis.  

b) Project trajectory.  

c) Needs analysis. 

d) Skill sets and proficiencies. 

9. Which of these is a step in creating the framework? 

a) Add the supporting or sub-points beneath each heading. 

b) Add optional components to your proposal. 

c) Outline the major points that your proposal will contain.  

d) Provide an explanation of why you are writing the proposal, and an overview of what to 

expect. 

10. When getting down to details, what is the maximum number of sub-points per heading? 

a) Three 

b) Five 

c) Eight 

d) Nine 
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Module Five: Finding Facts 

Now that we have an outline built, it’s time to find facts to 

support our headings and sub-headings. In this module, we 

will look at what sources you can use and how to organize 

your information. 

 

 

 

 

Identifying Resources 

Before writing can begin, you must gather facts to support the proposal. 

Where do you look for facts? 

• Observing and interviewing 

• Company employees 

• Company documents and reports 

• Consultants if they are available to you 

• Industry experts (with credentials for their expertise) 

• Reports from accredited organizations 

• Scientific studies 

• Publications such as journals and magazines 

• Books 

Research is to see what everybody 

else has seen, and to think what 

nobody else has thought. 

Albert Szent-Gyorgyi 
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Always get the original documentation. For example, if an employee gives you statistics from last year’s 

financial statement gather a copy of the statement yourself and verify the statistics. Make sure to 

properly source the documentation in your report. 

 

Using the Internet as a Resource 

The Internet can be an excellent resource for gathering information if it is used 

properly. You need to make sure that the information you gather is reliable and 

credible.  

Some tips: 

• Only use information from accredited, reliable organizations (such as the 

government, major non-profit organizations, and accredited institutions). 

• Always go directly to the source to get your information. For example, if you find a blog that 

references an interesting study, track down the study and use its information during your 

proposal. 

• Use the Internet to find offline resources. For example, you may need to contact an organization 

by phone or e-mail to get the report that you need. 

Finally, remember that your outline is just a guideline. If you find additional information that you feel is 

pertinent, review the outline to see where it can be included, and revise as necessary. 
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Organizing Your Information 

Information should, naturally, be organized by heading and sub-heading. Within 

those groupings, however, there are some other ways to organize information. 

The most common choice for a proposal is from problem to solution. This means 

that a sub-heading section would start with a problem statement, spend several 

paragraphs outlining the options (making your organization’s offering seem the 

most attractive), and offer a conclusion at the end. 

Some other methods include: 

• Chronological order (most recent to oldest, or vice versa) 

• By level of detail (simplest to most complex, or vice versa) 

• By importance 

• Separated by pros and cons, with a conclusion at the end 

• By offering a question and then an answer 

 

Module Five: Case Study 

Donna finished the first draft of her proposal the night before, and in the morning, she took a copy to 

her co-worker, Anthony. She was hoping that he might hone in on some areas that needed revising. 

Anthony read over the proposal. When it came time to talk about the bibliography, he noted, “I see that 

many of your facts and statistics come from online resources, which is great. The internet is a fantastic 

resources for information gathering. However, here you cite an online blog as a resource.” 

Donna said, “Did I not cite it correctly?” 

Anthony said, “No, you did. But I’d suggest finding the study that the blog is using. That way your 

information is coming from the most credible source.” 

Donna said, “Good idea. Thanks, Anthony.” With a little digging, she found the study and included it in 

her proposal. 
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Module Five: Review Questions 

1. Which of these is helpful when looking for facts? 

a) Publications such as journals and magazines. 

b) A competing company’s word of mouth. 

c) Third party information. 

d) Facebook pages. 

2. Which of these is not helpful when looking for facts? 

a) Company documents and reports 

b) A biased party 

c) Industry experts 

d) Books 

3. Which of these statements is good advice when identifying resources? 

a) Do not source the documentation in your report. 

b) If an employee gives you statistics from last year’s financial statement, their word is good 

enough. 

c) Always get the original documentation.  

d) Trust the advice of others. Do not trust your own observation and interviewing.  

4. Which of these statements is not good advice when it comes to using the internet as a resource? 

a) Only use information from accredited, reliable organizations. 

b) Always go directly to the source to get your information. 

c) All sites on the internet are reliable for gathering information for your proposal.  

d) Use the Internet to find offline resources.  

5. Which of these is an example of a credible, reliable organization? 

a) Major non-profit organizations 

b) The government 

c) Accredited institutions 

d) All of the above 
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6. If you find a blog that references an interesting study, how could you include this information as 

a resource? 

a) Track down the study and use its information during your proposal.  

b) Verify the information with the co-workers at your company and use it as information 

during your proposal. 

c) Site the blog in the bibliography of your proposal. 

d) Blogs are not reliable sources of information, so the information could not be used. 

7. Which of these is an example of using the internet to find an offline resource? 

a) Citing information from a personal blog online. 

b) Contacting an organization by phone or e-mail to get the report that you need.  

c) Clicking on a link to get to a government website. 

d) Contacting customer service about a website glitch. 

8. If you find additional information that you feel is pertinent, what should you do? 

a) Make sure that there are sites on the internet verifying that the information is accurate. 

b) Write an addendum to your proposal to include the new information. 

c) Review the outline to see where it can be included, and revise as necessary.  

d) Do not add the additional information as the proposal is already complete. 

9. How should information be organized? 

a) By paragraphs. 

b) By bullet points. 

c) Stream of consciousness. 

d) Heading and sub-heading.  

10. Which of these is the most common choice for a proposal? 

a) From problem to solution.  

b) Separated by pros and cons. 

c) By offering a question, and then an answer. 

d) By importance. 
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Module Six: Writing Skills (I) 

The research is done, the outline is complete, and you’re ready to 

write, right? Hold on just a moment! Before you dive into your word 

processor, let’s review some basic writing skills.  

 

 

 

 

 

Spelling and Grammar 

Paying attention to proper spelling and grammar is general good practice, and it will 

make your editing process a lot easier. Although you don’t need to worry about 

perfection at this point, it is worthwhile to keep some basic spelling and grammar 

tips in mind. 

• Remember basic rules, such as, “I before e, except after c, and when 

sounded like a, as in neighbor and weigh.” 

• Proposals should usually use the third person (it, they), or rarely the second person (we). Never 

use the first person (I, me, she, and he). 

• Acronyms and texting slang do not belong in a proposal (or in any business document, for that 

matter). 

• Watch for correct spelling but incorrect usage, such as, “Their were too many ponies in the 

stall.” This is one of the biggest things that spell check misses (although Microsoft Office is now 

capable of checking for it). 

• Know what errors you commonly make so that you can make an effort to correct them. 

• Writing well takes practice. Read and write often! 

The role of a writer is not to say 

what we all can say, but what we are 

unable to say. 

Anaïs Nin 
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• Invest in at least one good grammar reference book. Strunk and White’s The Elements of Style is 

a classic, while Lauren Kessler’s When Words Collide is a more recent, accessible desktop 

reference. A good dictionary and thesaurus are an essential purchase. 

• Make use of available tools, such as spell check, dictionaries, thesauri, and people directories. 

(Note that we said spell check is a tool, not a solution – it can be wrong, too!) 

• If you are stuck on a sentence, try reading it out loud. Or, highlight it and come back to it later. 

• Always re-read your work. Have someone else read it too, if possible. (We will talk about peer 

review later on in the course.) 

 

Working with Words 

Choosing the correct word can make the difference between comprehension and 

confusion. Take the time to make sure your words reflect what you really want to 

say. 

Some things to watch out for: 

• Proposals should be objective rather than subjective. This means leave your opinions out! For 

example, instead of saying, “Last year’s numbers were abysmal,” give the exact statistic and let 

the reader draw their own conclusion. 

• Include the appropriate level of detail in each sentence and paragraph. Too little detail will leave 

the reader confused; too much detail and they may become bored. (This is where a good 

understanding of your audience comes in handy.) 

• Check to see if you have said the same thing in different ways. This will help make your writing 

as concise as possible. 

• To see if you have used the right word, try substituting synonyms for your chosen word. For 

example, what does each of these sentences mean to you? 

o The ruling was fair. 

o The ruling was reasonable. 

o The ruling was just. 

• Be very careful when using jargon, slang, and acronyms. Provide a glossary if necessary. 

• As we mentioned earlier, watch out for instances where you have spelled the word correctly, 

but used it incorrectly. This is a very common mistake. 
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Constructing Sentences 

There are three main types of sentences: 

• Simple: A single idea expressed with one subject and one verb. (Jim went to 

the store to get ice cream.) 

• Compound: Two ideas expressed together. (Jim went to the store to get ice 

cream and got lost on the way.) 

• Complex: A single idea, with a dependent idea. (Jim went to the store to get ice cream after he 

ate supper.)  

Note that in the compound sentence, the secondary part ([he] got lost on the way) would make sense 

on its own. In the complex sentence, the dependent idea (after he ate supper) cannot stand on its own.  

Sometimes, you will also see compound-complex sentences. (Example: Jim went to the store to get ice 

cream after he ate supper, but got lost on his way.) 

In general, keep your sentences as short as possible; ten to fifteen words is the optimum length. If you 

have used “and” or “but,” or punctuation such as a comma or semicolon, see if you can break the 

sentence up. Peoples’ attention spans are getting shorter every day, meaning they are more likely to 

read short paragraphs with short, easy to read sentences. 

Another trick to maximize comprehension is to use parallel construction. This means that if you are 

using several verbs, make them the same tense. 

Which sentence is easier to read? 

1. Some common ways of losing weight including joining the gym, walk every day, and having worked 

out with your family. 

2. Some common ways of losing weight including joining the gym, walking every day, and working out 

with your family. 

As you might guess, the second sentence uses parallel construction. 
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Persuasive Writing 

Did you know that there are some things that everyone responds to? Include these 

six items in your proposal wherever possible, and you’re guaranteed a “yes” on at 

least some of your points. 

• Consistency: Make sure your proposal is sending a clear, consistent 

message. (This is where your goal statement can come in handy.) It is also 

helpful if your organization is sending the same message.  

• Reciprocity: Give your clients something – they will feel compelled to give back.  

• Social Validation: People tend to follow the crowd. If possible, show how elements in your 

proposal were successful for people known to the proposal audience. 

• Likability: Be friendly in your proposal. You will not win by badgering, bullying, or insulting. 

• Authority: Establish why you are the experts in this area, and why you are the right people to be 

making this proposal. 

• Scarcity: Special offer! While supplies last! Limited time only! Create a unique element and, if 

possible, a sense of urgency and importance in your proposal. 

 

Mastering Voice 

There are two voices in writing: 

• Active voice, where the writer is doing something. (Example: I 

bounced the ball.) 

• Passive voice, where something is being done. (Example: The 

ball was bounced.) 

Generally, the active voice is stronger, crisper, and more persuasive. It should be used whenever 

possible. However, the passive voice is useful when you are delivering bad news, or when you are not 

sure who performed an action. 
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Module Six: Case Study 

William presented the first draft of his proposal to his manager, Elizabeth. He had an excellent working 

relationship with Elizabeth, and she had offered to give him feedback. 

At one point, Elizabeth stopped and said, “I can see here that you’re trying to convince your customer 

that they need your product, which is exactly what you should be doing. However, you use the words 

‘Last quarter productivity dropped, and this is unacceptable for your company.’” 

William asked, “Does that come off too negative? I was trying to be direct.” 

Elizabeth said, “Instead of giving your opinion, give them the statistic and leave it at that. That way they 

have the objective information, and they can draw that conclusion themselves.” 

William changed the wording, which improved his proposal. This small change, along with many others, 

led to his proposal’s success. 
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Module Six: Review Questions 

1. Why is paying attention to proper spelling and grammar important? 

a) Because whether or not your proposal is accepted ultimately depends on it. 

b) Because it is general good practice, and it will make your editing process a lot easier.  

c) Because it will decrease costs. 

d) Because good spelling and grammar stands out and will catch the attention of whoever 

reads it. 

2. Which of these are proposals usually written in? 

a) Third person 

b) Second person 

c) First person 

d) All of the above 

3. Which of these do not belong in a proposal? 

a) “I before e, except after c.” 

b) Acronyms and texting slang.  

c) Correct spelling. 

d) Text spoken in the third person. 

4. Which of these is a good suggestion when it comes to working with words? 

a) Proposals should be subjective rather than objective. 

b) Use as much detail as possible in each sentence and paragraph. 

c) Be sure to say the same thing but in different ways for maximum effect. 

d) Watch out for instances where you have spelled the word correctly, but used it incorrectly.  

5. When using jargon, slang, and acronyms, what can be helpful to your reader? 

a) A dictionary 

b) An example 

c) A glossary 

d) A timetable 

6. Which of these are not a type of sentence? 

a) Simple 

b) Compound 

c) Complex 

d) Demonstrative 
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7. How many words is the optimum length for a sentence? 

a) One to Five 

b) Five to Ten 

c) Ten to Fifteen 

d) Fifteen to twenty 

8. Which of these items in persuasive writing should be used in your proposal? 

a) Authority 

b) Badgering 

c) Journalism 

d) Creative writing 

9. Which of these is an example of scarcity? 

a) “Available every Monday!” 

b) When the proposal is clear and consistent. 

c) Being friendly in your proposal.  

d) “Special Offer!”  

10. Which voice in writing is more persuasive? 

a) Passive voice 

b) Active voice 

c) Modulated voice 

d) Matter-of-fact voice 
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Module Seven: Writing Skills (II) 

Now that we’ve got the basics of words and sentences down, 

let’s move on to creating paragraphs and linking them 

together. We’ll also look at some ways to check your writing 

for clarity and readability. 

 

 

 

 

Creating Paragraphs 

A basic paragraph is simply a collection of sentences. A good paragraph, 

however, is much more than that. 

• It has a beginning, middle, and an end. 

• It focuses on one theme or idea. 

• It ties to the paragraphs before and after it to help build to a logical conclusion. 

Typically, paragraphs are structured like this: 

• The beginning should state the key theme in one sentence. 

• The middle should provide support for the key theme in three to five sentences. 

• The end should summarize the key theme in one sentence. It can also provide solutions, give 

answers, or transition to the next paragraph. 

The length guidelines that we have provided here are just that – guidelines. To keep the reader’s 

interest, you should vary the length of your sentences and your paragraphs. 

 

  

The worst enemy to creativity is self-

doubt. 

Sylvia Plath 
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Creating Strong Transitions  

Creating smooth transitions between paragraphs can be a tough task, but it will 

make your proposal much more effective and much easier to read. It will also help 

the reader draw a logical path between your points, to your conclusion. 

To transition a paragraph, find a common theme between the first paragraph and 

the second. Then, use that theme as the paragraph’s opening sentence. To cement 

things together, start your sentence with a transitional word or phrase. Some 

examples: 

• However 

• Also 

• Likewise 

• Consequently 

• Previously 

• On the other hand 

• In conclusion  

• To illustrate 

• In contrast  

Remember, good transitions take time and practice. The payoff will be a stronger proposal and a more 

convinced reader.  
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Building to Conclusions 

There should be several levels of conclusions in your proposal. 

• Mini-conclusion at the end of each paragraph, tying the main points 

together, and transitioning to the next paragraph (if appropriate). 

• Conclusion paragraph at the end of each part of a section (sub-section, sub-

sub section, etc.), tying all the paragraphs in that section together. 

• Conclusion paragraph at the end of each major section, tying all the sections together. 

When writing a conclusion, try asking yourself, “So what?” to help build a strong case. Example: 

• In this paragraph, I am saying that the WidgetMaster can improve assembly line consistency by 

45%. 

• So what? 

• Assembly line problems account for 95% of product defects. 

• So what? 

• The WidgetMaster can help reduce product defects by improving consistency in the assembly 

line by up to 45%. 

Make sure that each conclusion supports your main proposal goal. If it doesn’t, that section may need to 

be revised or eliminated. 
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Module Seven: Case Study 

Edward and Mark sat down to look at Mark’s second draft of his proposal. 

Edward said, “There’s still something that’s still bothering you about it, isn’t it?” 

Mark said, “There is! And I just figured it out. It’s the conclusion paragraph at the end of this section. It 

feels like when you wrote it, you just were running out of steam.” 

“I was,” Edward admitted. “What do you think it needs?” 

Mark said, “Whenever I get stuck at the conclusion, I ask myself a question. In this case, it would be, 

‘The EasySell can improve line efficiency by 55%. So what?’ Say why it can help. Say why it solves the 

problem.” 

Edward grinned. “That’s perfect. That’s just what it needs.” 

Later that month when Edward delivered the proposal, he was confident that it would catch the 

attention his customer. 
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Module Seven: Review Questions 

1. What can be defined simply as “a collection of sentences”? 

a) Proposal 

b) Writing style 

c) A paragraph 

d) A conclusion 

2. How many themes or ideas should a paragraph focus on? 

a) One 

b) Two 

c) Three 

d) Five 

3. What should your paragraphs be building to? 

a) A strong first sentence 

b) A logical conclusion 

c) A persuasive argument 

d) An agreement from the reader 

4. What is the purpose of the end of the paragraph? 

a) To state the key theme in one sentence. 

b) To provide support for the key theme in three to five sentences.  

c) To summarize the key theme in one sentence.  

d) To condense the beginning, middle, and end. 

5. What is a good suggestion for keeping the reader’s interest? 

a) Repeat your idea whenever possible in different wording to drive the point home. 

b) Have the beginning of the paragraph state the key theme in three sentences. 

c) The middle of the paragraph should provide solutions, give answers, or transition to the 

next paragraph.  

d) Vary the length of your sentences and your paragraphs.  

6. What is the first step to transitioning from one paragraph to the next? 

a) Find a common theme between the first paragraph and the second.  

b) Make sure the last sentence supports your proposal goal. 

c) Start at the conclusion of the paragraph and work your way backwards. 

d) Use similar wording in the first and second paragraphs. 
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7. Which of these is not an example of a transitional word or phrase? 

a) Consequently 

b) Expertly 

c) On the other hand 

d) In conclusion 

8. What is the payoff of using good transitions between paragraphs? 

a) A stronger proposal 

b) A more convinced reader 

c) A cost-effective proposal 

d) Both A & B 

9. Which of these ties the main points together, and transitions to the next paragraph? 

a) Transitional phrase 

b) Conclusion paragraph 

c) Mini-conclusion at the end of each paragraph 

d) Beginning of the paragraph 

10. What should each conclusion support? 

a) Your writing style 

b) Your project management team 

c) Your stakeholders 

d) Your proposal goal 
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Module Eight: Writing the Proposal 

It’s finally time for the real purpose of our journey: 

writing the actual proposal. This module will look at some 

tools to help you write your first draft. 

 

 

 

 

Educating the Evaluator 

While writing your proposal, always ask yourself: what will the person reading this 

proposal receive from this sentence/paragraph/section? After all, your audience 

must be able to understand your proposal to approve it! Here are some key tools to 

help you educate your evaluator. 

Statement of Understanding: This is an optional section of the proposal, but it is 

very useful if you are presenting a proposal to solve a client’s problem. This section contains a statement 

reflecting your understanding of the problem. This is a great opportunity to show that you have done 

your research about the client’s business and that you understand their needs. 

Benefits Analysis: A benefits analysis should be included in all proposals. This section will highlight the 

advantages to the reader if they approve your proposal. If appropriate, costs for each benefit can be 

included. Just make sure you have some solid numbers to offer, and communicate that this is an analysis 

only and not a guarantee of results. 

Organizational Impact Statement: This section can be used to outline the impact on the client’s 

organization. This is an excellent section to outline “soft” benefits (those without a hard dollar value) if 

you have included a cost-benefit analysis. 

Some examples could include: 

• Improved customer confidence 

• Alignment with industry standards 

How do I know what I think until I 

see what I say? 

E. M. Forster 
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• Process standardization and improvement 

 

Ghosting the Competition 

When writing the proposal, make sure to include alternate solutions, and 

to show why they are not appropriate. Whenever possible, highlight the 

deficiencies in other approaches to the problem, and how your proposed 

solution does not have those areas of weakness. For maximum impact, 

structure this analysis in terms of risk mitigation and maximum benefit for 

the client reading the proposal. 

While you are ghosting, do not forget to include your own company. Point out where possible 

weaknesses or problems can occur (especially if they are well known) and why these issues will not be a 

concern for the client. 

Example 

We offer off-site data backup because we realize that many companies, including your own, operate in 

areas with volatile weather systems, making total facility destruction a real possibility. Off-site data 

backup ensures that the risk of data loss is fully mitigated. No other data storage offering combines off-

site data backup with 24-hour remote maintenance and the option of a tertiary satellite backup. 

 

Using Illustrations 

A picture is worth a thousand words… if it is done correctly. Let’s look at some 

tips. 

Some overall tips for diagrams: 

• Only use an illustration if it helps to convey your point. 

• Make sure to use the proper type of illustration, particularly if you are using a chart. 

• Each illustration should convey one major point. 

• Where possible, construct diagrams using a computer. 

If your proposal includes many illustrations, number each sequentially and include a Table of Figures at 

the beginning of your proposal. (Many word processors can do this for you automatically.) 
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Type  Description Example(s) Tips 

Charts/Graphs A visual display of 

numerical data. 

Pie charts, line graphs Use clear colors and 

consistent formatting.  

Make sure that clear legends 

and labels are included.  

Only include pertinent data. 

Diagram A visual display of non-

numerical data. 

Process flows, matrices, 

organizational charts 

See tips for “Charts and 

Graphs.” 

Snapshot A photographic picture. Picture of the product you 

are proposing 

Make sure that the 

photograph looks 

professional, has good 

lighting, and clearly depicts 

what you want to illustrate. 

 

Module Eight: Case Study 

Jennifer went over her proposal with Jeff. She wanted to make sure that it made sense and sounded 

logical to someone much like her customer. When she asked Jeff for feedback, he said, “I think you did a 

great job of outlining the problems your customer will run into if they choose to go with your 

competitors. That part was very clear to me.” 

Jennifer asked, “Was there anything that you would change or add to that part?” 

Jeff said, “You know, you focus so much on why this customer shouldn’t go with your competitors that 

you forget to talk about your own company. Be sure to talk about the problems they might face and why 

your company won’t be a concern.” 

Jennifer took notes and added in Jeff’s suggestion. When her customer received her proposal, she 

received positive feedback. 
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Module Eight: Review Questions 

1. What is the main goal of having your audience understand your proposal? 

a) So they will notice the correct spelling and grammar. 

b) So they will read the proposal in its entirety. 

c) So they will be able to discuss your proposal. 

d) So they can approve your proposal.  

2. Which of these is an optional section of the proposal, but very useful if you are presenting a 

proposal to solve a client’s problem? 

a) Statement of work 

b) Organizational impact statement 

c) Statement of understanding 

d) Benefits analysis 

3. Which section of the proposal will highlight the advantages to the reader if they approve your 

proposal? 

a) Benefits analysis 

b) Statement of understanding 

c) Needs analysis 

d) Organizational impact statement 

4. Which of these statements is true of the benefits analysis? 

a) It contains a statement reflecting your understanding of the problem.  

b) This section will highlight the advantages to the reader if they approve your proposal.  

c) This section can be used to outline the impact on the client’s organization.  

d) This is a great opportunity to show that you have done your research about the client’s 

business and that you understand their needs. 

5. Which of these is an example of a ‘soft’ benefit that can be included in the organizational impact 

statement? 

a) Company will be up-to-date with the newest system. 

b) Company’s productivity will increase by 20%.  

c) Company will experience improved customer confidence.  

d) Product will be available to the company by March 21st. 
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6. What is a good suggestion for ghosting the competition? 

a) Structure your analysis in terms of risk mitigation and maximum benefit for the client 

reading the proposal.  

b) Focus only on your solution and why it is the most appropriate. 

c) Highlight the strengths of your company, not the deficiencies of others. 

d) Point out the weaknesses of your proposed solution. 

7. If you need to point out where possible weaknesses or problems can occur, what else must you 

add? 

a) The weakness of other companies and their solutions. 

b) Your company’s success rate. 

c) The customer service other vendors have experienced with your product. 

d) Why these issues will not be a concern for the client.  

8. When using a diagram, when should you use an illustration? 

a) In every slide 

b) Whenever possible 

c) Only in the beginning of your presentation 

d) Only if the illustration helps convey your point 

9. How many points should each illustration convey? 

a) One 

b) Three 

c) Five 

d) Up to seven 

10. If your proposal includes many illustrations, what should you do? 

a) Go through each one and take out two or three so that the audience will not be 

overwhelmed. 

b) Nothing; let the illustrations speak for themselves. 

c) Number each sequentially and include a Table of Figures at the beginning of your proposal.  

d) Take a partner with you to help present. 
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Module Nine: Checking for Readability  

Once your proposal is written, it’s time to check it for clarity and 

readability. This module will offer you some tools to do just that. 

 

 

 

 

 

Checking for Clarity 

Use the following checklist to help make sure your writing will be clear to your 

readers. 

• Have I used words with their correct meaning and in their correct 

context? 

• Have I used punctuation appropriately? 

• Have I used jargon or slang? Should I explain myself? 

• Have I used the active voice wherever possible? 

• Are my sentences clearly constructed? 

• Do my paragraphs transition well? 

• Have I primarily used the third person? 

• Does each paragraph have a logical beginning, middle, and end, focused around one idea? 

• Does each paragraph, sub-section, and section tie back to the goal statement? 

  

Never use a 50-cent word when a 10-

cent word will do.  

Anonymous 
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Reading for Your Audience 

As a final check for clarity, try to anticipate any questions that your audience 

may have. Things to check for include: 

• Have you used jargon that needs to be explained? 

• Have you written at an appropriate level? 

• Are all sections written for the correct audience? (For example, if you have written a technical 

proposal, the body may be written for a technical audience, while the executive summary may 

be written at a higher level.) 

• Have you provided enough background information? 

• Do your supporting points clearly lead to a conclusion? 

If at all possible, have someone similar to your audience read your proposal and highlight areas that 

need clarification. 

 

Using the Readability Index  

Another tool for checking the clarity of your writing is the Gunning Fog 

Index. The index takes a sample of writing, performs calculations on it, and 

outputs the level of education (for example, Grade 9) that a person will 

theoretically need to read it.  

Most business documents, including proposals, should be written at a 

grade eight or nine level. 

Here’s how to use the index. First, mark out a full passage of about 100 words. (Don’t cut sentences off.) 

Then perform the following calculations: 

1. Count the number of words. 

2. Count the number of sentences. 

3. Divide the number of words by the number of sentences. This will give you the average sentence 

length. 

4. Count the number of words with three or more syllables (also known as polysyllabic words). Exclude 

the following words: proper names, jargon, compound words, and words with a suffix (such as ing, 

es, ed, and etc.). 

5. Divide the number of polysyllabic words by the number of words in the passage. Multiply by 100. 

This is the percentage of complex words in the passage. 

6. Add the average sentence length to the percentage of complex words. 

7. Multiply this total by 0.4 to get your fog factor. 
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Module Nine: Case Study 

Larry met with Nina, who had read over the first draft of his sales proposal. From her compliments, it 

appeared that most of his proposal was well-written and answered the questions that his audience 

would want answered. Nina said, “May I offer some constructive criticism?” 

“Sure,” Larry said. “I don’t see how the proposal can improve without some criticism.” 

Nina said, “I remember that you told me that you come from a background in technical proposal writing. 

While that definitely prepared you for writing a sales proposal, some of the jargon you used might be 

great for a technical proposal, but definitely stood out on this proposal.” 

“What do you think I should do?” Larry asked. 

Nina said, “My advice? Either explain the jargon well enough that your customer understands, or just 

replace it altogether with sales terms.” 

Larry took Nina’s advice, and it improved his sales proposal. 
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Module Nine: Review Questions 

1. Once your proposal is ready, what should you check for? 

a) Clarity 

b) Readability 

c) Word count 

d) Both A & B 

2. Which of these is not an important question to have on your checklist? 

a) Have I used punctuation appropriately? 

b) Did I use enough slang and jargon?  

c) Do my paragraphs transition well? 

d) Does each paragraph, sub-section, and section tie back to the goal statement? 

3. As a final check for clarity, what should you do? 

a) Send your proposal to an editor to “fine tune” the paragraphs and statements. 

b) Write a separate version of your proposal, so that you have a back-up just in case. 

c) Try to anticipate any questions that your audience may have.  

d) Check the grammar, spelling, and punctuation last. 

4. Which of these is a good question to ask yourself about the audience for your proposal? 

a) Have you provided enough words to lengthen your proposal? 

b) Have you used any vocabulary that your audience will not understand? 

c) Do your supporting points clearly lead back to the beginning? 

d) Are all sections written for the correct audience?  

5. If at all possible, what should you do to further clarify your proposal? 

a) Have someone similar to your audience read your proposal and highlight areas that need 

clarification.  

b) Hold a company-wide meeting to discuss the pros and cons of your proposal. 

c) See if your supervising managers can read your proposal and write sections themselves. 

d) Edit each section often in the days leading up to the presentation of your proposal. 

6. How does the Gunning Fog Index help with the clarity of your proposal? 

a) The index takes a sample of writing, performs calculations on it, and outputs the level of 

education that a person will theoretically need to read it.  

b) This index is a collection of sites on the English Language, grammar, style, and references. 

c) The index provides an extensive list of free information on the Internet that could be useful 

to writers. 
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d) The index is very comprehensive site produced by the editors of the Oxford English 

Dictionary that has lots of information about writing. 

7. What grade should most business documents be written at? 

a) Five or six 

b) Six or seven 

c) Seven or eight 

d) Eight or nine 

8. When using the Gunning Fog Index, how many words should you mark out? 

a) A full passage of 25 words 

b) A full passage of 75 words 

c) A full passage of 100 words 

d) A full passage of 200 words 

9. What is the first step when performing calculations with the Gunning Fog Index? 

a) Divide the number of words by the number of sentences.  

b) Add the average sentence length to the percentage of complex words. 

c) Count the number of words.  

d) Count the number of sentences. 

10. What is the last step when performing calculations with the Gunning Fog Index? 

a) Add the average sentence length to the percentage of complex words. 

b) Multiply the total by 0.4 to get your fog factor.  

c) Count the number of sentences. 

d) Divide the number of words by the number of sentences.  
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Module Ten: Proofreading and Editing 

With all the hard work you’ve put into your proposal, the last thing 

you want is for it to be tossed into a corner because of problems with 

the presentation or spelling and grammar errors. 

Even if someone else will be editing your work, you should always 

proofread and edit your writing before handing it off. This way, you 

can make sure that you said what you really meant to say. 

Remember: A good editor is like a good plastic surgeon – after they’re 

done, you should be able to tell that things are better, although you 

can’t tell exactly what has changed. 

 

Proofreading Like a Pro 

When we read a document, we don’t read every word. Instead, our mind scans 

each sentence to gain overall comprehension. This makes it tough to spot and 

correct errors. 

Here are some tips to proofread like a pro: 

• Set up an environment conducive to editing, with good lighting, minimal distractions, and all the 

tools you need. 

• Make a conscious effort to read slowly.  

• Read the document several times. 

• Try reading out loud. 

• Make a checklist of errors that you will be looking for. 

• Try reading in the opposite order: from the bottom to the top of the page, and from the end to 

the beginning of a paragraph. 

• If you’re not sure what a word means, or if it has been used correctly, look it up. 

• Expect to find mistakes. 

There is no great writing, only great 

rewriting. 

Justice Brandeis 
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Editing Techniques 

Editing is different from proofreading in that proofreading mainly focuses on 

spelling and grammar, while editing looks at the clarity, accuracy, and 

consistency of the document as a whole. Therefore, it is important to understand 

exactly why you are editing the document: 

• For spelling and grammar (and therefore focusing on proofreading)? 

• For general writing elements (such as ensuring that sections each prove a specific point, that all 

points lead to the conclusion, and that the document is clear and concise)? 

• For specific proposal elements (such as the introduction, statement of understanding, and 

executive summary)? 

• For layout, formatting, and presentation? 

• For factual accuracy? 

• For illustrations? 

• For all of the above elements? 

In a peer review setting, the editor notes recommended changes and then hands the document back to 

the writer for revision, so make sure your editing marks are clear. Electronic review may be particularly 

useful if there are multiple reviewers. 

 

Checking the Facts 

Fact-checking is an important part of the proposal editing process. The fact 

checker’s sole goal is to review the information in the proposal and make sure that 

it is factually correct. 

Key items to check include: 

• Validity of quotes from people 

• Mathematical calculations 

• Presentation, analysis, and interpretation of studies 

• Phrasing of statistics (for example, use of words like always, exactly, never) 

The fact checker must also ensure that first-hand information is available. For example, if a scientific 

study is quoted, that study must be available, not another item (such as a newspaper article) quoting it. 
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The Power of Peer Review  

Peer review should be a mandatory component of any proposal writing process. 

Typically, your peer editor reviews the document, and then gives you feedback 

to incorporate into the proposal. 

Why is peer review so important? First, because of the way the human brain 

works, it is physically impossible for you to see many of your own errors. Second, 

having someone else read your work will help ensure that you have included all points to make a logical, 

clear case. Third, everyone has their personal areas of writing weaknesses, and peer review will help 

compensate for those weaknesses. 

 

Module Ten: Case Study 

John sat in his study, looking over the sales proposal that he’d just finished writing. In the past, he had 

gotten feedback from co-workers and supervisors that his work often needed more proofreading. This 

often led team members and supervisors to find more errors in his writing than he would prefer. John 

knew that he didn’t want to get the same feedback once again, so he tried something different this 

time. 

John made sure that he was in a quiet, well-lit area. He read through the document several times, and 

then he read the document out loud, to catch wording and phrases that needed to sound smoother. 

Finally, he took out a list of errors that he often made and double-checked the proposal. 

Once John proofread the document using his new skills, he felt confident sending out the first draft as a 

.pdf file to his supervisor. 
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Module Ten: Review Questions 

1. Even if someone else will be editing your work, why should you proofread and edit your writing 

before handing it off? 

a) Because you may need to proofread the edits that someone else is making as well. 

b) Because then you can make sure that you said what you really meant to say.  

c) Because you want it to be tossed into a corner because of problems with grammar. 

d) Because you can never truly trust anyone to edit a proposal like you would yourself. 

2. How is editing different from proofreading? 

a) Editing mainly focuses on spelling and grammar. 

b) Editing mainly focuses on meaning and tone. 

c) Editing looks at the clarity, accuracy, and consistency of the document as a whole.  

d) Proofreading looks at the clarity, accuracy, and consistency of the document as a whole.  

3. Which of these is a common reason for editing a document? 

a) For spelling and grammar 

b) For publication 

c) For electronic review 

d) All of the above 

4. What may be particularly useful for multiple reviewers? 

a) Editing by hand. 

b) Editing in one office on a designated day. 

c) Editing by electronic review.  

d) Editing and proofreading on a daily basis. 

5. What is the fact checker’s sole goal? 

a) To improve the quality of communication within the proposal. 

b) To review the information in the proposal and make sure that it is factually correct.  

c) To eliminate errors and clarifying meaning. 

d) To make sure that the proposal is thoughtfully and interestingly written. 

6. What is an item that the fact-checker would check? 

a) Spelling 

b) Grammar 

c) Tone of writing 

d) Phrasing of statistics 
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7. What must the fact checker ensure is available? 

a) First-hand information.  

b) Direct quotes by suitable sources. 

c) A bibliography. 

d) Correct spelling and grammar. 

8. What should be a mandatory component of any proposal writing process? 

a) Publication 

b) Peer review 

c) Outside editing 

d) Rewriting 

9. Typically, what is the job of the peer editor? 

a) To review the document, and then give feedback to incorporate into the proposal.  

b) To review the information in the proposal and make sure that it is factually correct 

c) To make sure that the proposal is thoughtfully and interestingly written. 

d) To eliminate errors and clarifying meaning. 

10. Why is peer review so important?  

a) Because of the way the human brain works, it is physically impossible for you to see many of 

your own errors.  

b) Having someone else read your work will help ensure that you have included all points to 

make a logical, clear case.  

c) Everyone has their personal areas of writing weaknesses, and peer review will help 

compensate for those weaknesses. 

d) All of the above.  
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Module Eleven: Adding the Final Touches 

Your proposal has been thoroughly researched, brilliantly written, and 

carefully edited. But if it’s in an eight point font, all of your hard work will 

likely go unnoticed. This module will show you how to present your 

proposal in a professional way. 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Top Typesetting Tips 

It should go without saying that all proposals should be prepared electronically. 

With that being said, most word processing programs offer hundreds of fonts, 

plus the ability to apply a myriad of effects and add many enhancements. 

When preparing your proposal, remember that less is more. For maximum 

readability, follow these guidelines: 

• First and foremost, respect company policies and any requirements set 

out by the client. Their rules supersede anything you may read here. 

• Use a maximum of two font faces: one for headings and one for the body. 

• Establish a consistent formatting scheme throughout the document. 

• Use common fonts, such as Times New Roman, Calibri, Arial, or Verdana. 

• If you use font effects, use them sparingly, and stick to the basic effects (bold, italic, and 

underline). 

• If your word processor offers a consistent way to use formatting (such as styles or themes), 

make use of it.  

For me, writing is hard work. I 

always look forward to drawing the 

pictures. 

Marc Brown 
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Achieving a Professional Look and Feel 

In addition to clean, consistent fonts, there are a few other things that you 

can do to give your proposal that extra touch. 

• Use plenty of white space. 

• Give your proposal a title and create a title page. 

• If the document contains signatures, get everyone to sign in the same color ink. Use the same 

pen if possible. 

• Use consistent headers and footers that include page numbers. 

• Ensure all components (headers, footers, illustrations, text, cover pages, etc.) match. 

• Remember, less is more! 

 

Creating the Final Package 

If the proposal is to be printed, you will want to make sure that its appearance 

reflects all the hard work put into it. Some tips: 

• Print the proposal in color. 

• Use good quality white paper, with dark blue or black type. 

• Make sure that all sections are present and that all pages are in order. 

• Include a blank page at the end. 

• Simple, professional binding, such as spiral binding or an elegant three-ring binder can make a 

big impact. 

• A disc that includes an electronic copy of the proposal and any key documents can be added to 

the paper copy (for example, in a pouch at the back of the binder).  

• Keep printed copies clean and dry. 

• If corrections need to be made, make them in the word processor and print new copies. You can 

also create an errata sheet and add it to the beginning of the proposal. 

If you are mailing the proposal, use a manila or padded envelope big enough to contain the proposal, 

without folding it. Spend the extra money to courier it, rather than tossing it in the mail. 
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If it is to be e-mailed, choose a commonly used format, such as PDF. Make sure the file is small enough 

to be transmitted to all parties. Be sure to include a subject line and brief note, or even the cover letter, 

in the body.  

 

Module Eleven: Case Study 

Lisa let out a breath of relief. Mary, her supervisor, had helped her proofread and edit her proposal. It 

was due to be presented in the next week, and the two of them had worked hard to complete the 

proposal. 

Lisa said, “Well. It looks like it’s a finished project. Wouldn’t you say?” 

“I would!” Mary said. “However, now is not the time to relax. Now is the time to package our proposal 

perfectly.” 

Lisa smiled. “What would you suggest?” 

Mary opened up her laptop. “Let’s go to an office supply store website. They have some excellent 

binders and good quality paper that will show off all the hard work you’ve done.” 

They chose special items, and they printed out the proposal in color to really make it pop. 
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Module Eleven: Review Questions 

1. How should all proposals be prepared? 

a) Quickly 

b) In cursive writing 

c) Within 3-4 drafts 

d) Electronically 

2. When preparing your proposal, when it comes to fonts and effects, what is important to 

remember? 

a) The more the merrier 

b) Less is more 

c) Actions speak louder than words 

d) Waste not, want not 

3. What rule supersedes any of our top typesetting tips? 

a) Use common fonts, such as Times New Roman, Calibri, Arial, or Verdana. 

b) Establish a consistent formatting scheme throughout the document. 

c) Any company policies and any requirements set out by the client.  

d) The list of “wants” set out by your client. 

4. If you use font effects, which is a good effect to use? 

a) Color 

b) Bold 

c) The largest font 

d) Extra punctuation 

5. What is the maximum number of font faces suggested to use? 

a) One 

b) Two 

c) Three 

d) Four 

6. If your document contains signatures, what is a good rule? 

a) Have everyone use the same pen, no matter what. 

b) Get one person to write the signatures for consistency. 

c) Get everyone to sign in the same color ink.  

d) Get everyone to use electronic signatures. 
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7. What should your headers and footers include? 

a) A border 

b) A chart 

c) Page numbers 

d) Footnotes 

8. What should be the same about your headers, footers, illustrations, text, and cover pages? 

a) They should all be contained on the same page. 

b) They should all be in different colors. 

c) They should all be in bold. 

d) They should all match.  

9. Which of these is not a good suggestion when creating the final package? 

a) Use good quality white paper, with dark brown or black type.  

b) Print the proposal in color. 

c) Include a blank page at the end. 

d) Keep printed copies clean and dry. 

10. What is a good tip if the proposal will be emailed? 

a) Use an uncommon format, such as .mp4. 

b) Be sure to include a subject line and brief note, or even the cover letter, in the body.  

c) Make sure the file is large enough to be transmitted to at least one party. 

d) Be sure to include signatures of everyone who had a hand in creating the proposal. 
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Module Twelve: Wrapping Up 

Although this workshop is coming to a close, we hope that your 

journey to improve your proposal writing skills is just beginning. 

Please take a moment to review and update your action plan. This 

will be a key tool to guide your progress in the days, weeks, months, 

and years to come. We wish you the best of luck on the rest of your 

travels!  

 

 

Words from the Wise 

• Olin Miller: Writing is the hardest way of earning a living, with the possible exception of 

wrestling alligators.  

• Stephen King: I believe the road to hell is paved with adverbs. 

• Jules Renard: Writing is the best way to talk without being interrupted.  

 

Management is doing things right; 

leadership is doing the right things. 

Peter Drucker 
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